
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
July 9, 2015

DRAFT 07-09-15 Planning Commission Minutes 5
SUB2015-00003

Mid Continent Airport 8th ADD -MAPC STAFF RPT -
SUB2015 03 45

SUB2015-00022
Estancia -MAPC STAFF RPT -SUB2015 22 48

SUB2015-00024
Steinke 2nd ADD -MAPC STAFF RPT -SUB2015 24 53

SUB2015-00025
Webb Road Townhome ADD -MAPC STAFF RPT -
SUB2015 25 56

SUB2015-00026
Estancia Commercial ADD -MAPC STAFF RPT -
SUB2015 26 60

VAC2015-00028
VAC2015 28 -MAPC STAFF RPT 64

VAC2015-00029
VAC2015 29 -MAPC STAFF RPT 68

VAC2015-00030
VAC2015 30 -MAPC STAFF RPT 71

VAC2015-00031
VAC2015 31 -MAPC STAFF RPT 75

VAC2015-00032
VAC2015 32 -MAPC STAFF RPT 79

CON2015-00024
CON2015-00024 Staff Report and Site Plan 82

ZON2015-00026 (Deferred from 7-23-2015)
ZON2015-00026 STAFF REPORT AND ATTACHED
CORRESPONDENCE 88

ZON2015-00031
ZON2015-00031 STAFF REPORT 101

CUP2015-00023
CUP2015-00023 STAFF REPORT AND SITE PLAN 107

DER2015-00001
DER2015-00001 STAFF REPORT AND
ATTACHMENTS 112

1



WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Thursday, August 20, 2015 

Page 1 of 3 

 
The regular meeting of the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission will be 
held on Thursday, August 20, 2015, beginning at 1:30 PM in the Planning Department Conference 
Room City Hall - 10th Floor, 455 N. Main Street, Wichita, Kansas. If you have any questions 
regarding the meeting or items on this agenda, please call the Wichita-Sedgwick County 
Metropolitan Area Planning Department at 316.268.4421. 

1. Approval of the prior MAPC meeting minutes: 
Meeting Date: July 9, 2015 

2. CONSIDERATION OF SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
Items may be taken in one motion unless there are questions or comments. 
SUBDIVISION CASE DETAILS 

2-1. SUB2015-00003: Final Plat – MID-CONTINENT AIRPORT 8TH ADDITION, 
located on the northeast corner of Tyler Road and K-42 Highway.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 
Surveyor: Baughman Company, P.A. 
Acreage: 77.83 
Total Lots: 2 

2-2. SUB2015-00022: Final Plat – ESTANCIA (formerly The Valencia Addition) 
ADDITION, located on the east side of Ridge Road, between K-96 Highway and 37th 
Street North.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 4-0-1 (D.Foster abstained) 
Surveyor: MKEC Engineering Inc 
Acreage: 72.63 
Total Lots: 173 

2-3. SUB2015-00024: One-Step Final Plat – STEINKE 2ND ADDITION, located west of 
151st Street West, on the south side of 47th Street South.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 
Surveyor: Ruggles & Bohm, P.A. 
Acreage: 10.18 
Total Lots: 2 

2-4. SUB2015-00025: One-Step Final Plat – WEBB ROAD TOWNHOME ADDITION, 
located south of 45th Street North on the west side of Webb Road.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 
Surveyor: K.E. Miller Engineering, P.A. 
Acreage: 8.71 
Total Lots: 37 

 

 

 

 

2



Page 2 of 3 

 

2-5. SUB2015-00026: Final Plat – ESTANCIA COMMERCIAL ADDITION, located on 
the east side of Ridge Road, between 37th Street North and K-96 Highway.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 4-0-1 (D.Foster abstained) 
Surveyor: MKEC Engineering Inc 
Acreage: 41.62 
Total Lots: 13 

3. PUBLIC HEARING – VACATION ITEMS 
ADVERTISED TO BE HEARD NO EARLIER THAN 1:30 PM 
Items may be taken in one motion unless there are questions or comments.  
Complete legal descriptions are available for public inspection at the Metropolitan Area Planning Department – 
10th Floor, City Hall, 455 N. Main Street, Wichita, Kansas 

3-1. VAC2015-00028: City request to vacate a portion of a platted setback and an 
easement dedicated by separate instrument on property, located on the northeast 
corner 21st Street North and Maize Road.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 4-0 

3-2. VAC2015-00029: City request to vacate a drainage easement dedicated by separate 
instrument on property, generally located on Hoover Court, west of Hoover Avenue 
(1831 S. Hoover Ct.).  

Committee Action: APPROVED 4-0 

3-3. VAC2015-00030: City request to vacate a portion of platted complete access control 
on property, generally located south of 21st Street North, on the west side of Rock Road 
and south of North Rock Road Court (1821 N. Rock Rd.).  

Committee Action: APPROVED 3-1  (L.Richardson NO) 

3-4. VAC2015-00031: County request to vacate portions of platted floodway reserves on 
property, generally located west of 127th Street East on the south side of 37th Street 
North.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 

3-5. VAC2015-00032: City request to vacate easements dedicated by separate 
instruments on property, generally located north of Kellogg- 1-35, on the east side of 
127th Street East, and east of Douglas Avenue.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
ADVERTISED TO BE HEARD NO EARLIER THAN 1:30 PM 

4. Case No.: CON2015-00024   
Request: City Conditional Use request for a group residence, limited, on MF-29 

Multi-Family Residential zoned property.  
General Location: North of 14th Street North on the east side of Hillside Avenue. 
Presenting Planner: Bill Longnecker 

3



Page 3 of 3 

5. Case No.: ZON2015-00026 (Deferred from 7-23-2015)  
Request: City zone change request from SF-5 Single-family Residential to TF-3 

Two-family Residential.  
General Location: One quarter mile west of Hoover Road on the south side of 37th Street 

North. 
Presenting Planner: Kathy Morgan 

6. Case No.: ZON2015-00031  
Request: City zone change request from SF-5 Single-family Residential to NR 

Neighborhood Retail.  
General Location: West of Ridge Road, at the northwest corner of Brunswick Street and 

Maple Street (7324 W. Maple St.) 
Presenting Planner: Bill Longnecker 

7. Case No.: CUP2015-00023  
Request: Minor Amendment to CUP DP-37 to allow for a hotel use and to increase 

allowable square footage from 34,242 square feet to 50,000 square feet on 
Parcel 14.  

General Location: South of University Avenue and East of Emerson. 
Presenting Planner: Dale Miller 

8. Case No.: DER2015-00001  
Request: Public hearing to consider adoption of the Final Draft Community 

Investments Plan 2015-2035 as the new Wichita-Sedgwick County 
Comprehensive Plan, and as supplemented by current elements adopted by 
amendment to the existing comprehensive plan.  

General Location: City and County-wide 
Presenting Planner: Dave Barber 
 

NON-PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 

9. Other Matters/Adjournment 

W. David Barber, Interim Secretary 
Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION  AGENDA ITEM NO. 2-1 
         AUGUST 20, 2015  
  
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: SUB2015-00003 – MID-CONTINENT AIRPORT 8TH ADDITION   
   
OWNER/APPLICANT: Wichita Airport Authority, Attn: John Oswald, 2173 Air Cargo 

Road, Wichita, KS 67209; City of Wichita, Attn: John Philbrick, 
Property Management, 455 North Main, Wichita, KS 67202   

 
SURVEYOR/AGENT: Baughman Company, Attn: Kris Rose, 315 Ellis, Wichita, KS 

67211  
 

LOCATION: Northeast corner of Tyler Road and K-42 Highway (District IV)  
 
SITE SIZE:   77.83 acres  
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
 Residential:    
            Office:   
 Commercial:         
 Industrial:  2 
 Total:   2 
 
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 28.16 acres   
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Single-Family Residential (SF-5), Limited Industrial (LI) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING:        Limited Industrial (LI)    
____________________________________________________________________________ 
VICINITY MAP 
 

 

45



SUB2015-00003 –Plat of MID-CONTINENT AIRPORT 8th ADDITION 
August 20, 2015 - Page 2 
 
NOTE:  This is a replat of the Skyway Industrial Park 2nd Addition and the Mid-Continent Airport 
6th Addition in addition to unplatted property.  The site has been approved for a zone change 
(ZON2014-00013) from Single-Family Residential (SF-5) to Limited Industrial (LI) for the eastern 
portion of the site.  
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 
A. City of Wichita Public Works and Utilities Department advises that the applicant needs to 

extend water (distribution) to Lots 1, 2 and Reserve C and D if needed.  Water is available to 
Reserve A and B.  The applicant needs to extend sanitary sewer (laterals) to serve all lots.  
In-lieu-of-assessment fees are due for water transmission.  In-lieu-of-assessment fees are 
due for sewer mains for Lot 2 and Reserves C and D. 

 
B. If improvements are guaranteed by petition(s), a notarized certificate listing the petition(s) 

shall be submitted to the Planning Department for recording. 
 
C. City Stormwater Management has approved the drainage plan.  
 
D. Traffic Engineering has approved the access controls.  The plat proposes along Tyler Road 

“access control per City of Wichita Access Management Standards and the approval of the 
City Traffic Engineer”.  The plat also proposes complete access control along K-42 Highway.     

 
E. In accordance with the Kansas Wetland Mapping Conventions under the Memorandum of 

Understanding between the United States Department of Agriculture - Natural Resources 
Conservation Service; United States Environmental Protection Agency; United States Army 
Corps of Engineers (USACE); and United States Fish and Wildlife Service, this site has been 
identified as one with potential wetland hydrology.  The USACE should be contacted (316-
322-8247) to have a wetland determination completed. 

 
F. Provisions shall be made for ownership and maintenance of the proposed reserves.  A 

restrictive covenant shall be submitted regarding ownership and maintenance 
responsibilities.  The restrictive covenant shall include language that the landowner will 
provide maintenance access ways to Reserves B, C and D upon any site development.  

 
G. For those reserves being platted for drainage purposes, the required covenant that provides 

for ownership and maintenance of the reserves, shall grant to the appropriate governing body 
the authority to maintain the drainage reserves in the event the owner(s) fail to do so.  The 
covenant shall provide for the cost of such maintenance to be charged back to the owner(s) 
by the governing body. 

 
H. City Environmental Health Division advises that only domestic sewage and domestic gray 

water may drain into a septic system.  Industrial and commercial properties must have a 
sewage holding tank or discharge to the City’s sanitary sewer system. 

 
I.  County Surveying and MAPD requests review of a pdf prior to mylar submittal.  Send to 

tricia.robello@sedgwick.gov and nstrahl@wichita.gov. 
 
J. The Applicant is reminded that a platting binder is required with the final plat.  Approval of this 

plat will be subject to submittal of this binder and any relevant conditions found by such a 
review. 

 

46



SUB2015-00003 –Plat of MID-CONTINENT AIRPORT 8th ADDITION 
August 20, 2015 - Page 3 
 
K. The plattor’s text shall include language that a drainage plan has been developed for the plat 

and that all drainage easements, rights-of-way, or reserves shall remain at established 
grades or as modified with the approval of the applicable City or County Engineer and 
unobstructed to allow for the conveyance of stormwater.  

 
L. The applicant shall install or guarantee the installation of all utilities and facilities that are 

applicable and described in Article 8 of the MAPC Subdivision Regulations.  (Water service 
and fire hydrants required by Article 8 for fire protection shall be as per the direction and 
approval of the Chief of the Fire Department.) 

 
M. The Register of Deeds requires all names to be printed beneath the signatures on the plat 

and any associated documents.  
 
N. Prior to development of the plat, the applicant is advised to meet with the United States 

Postal Service Growth Management Coordinator (Phone:  316-946-4556) in order to receive 
mail delivery without delay, avoid unnecessary expense and determine the type of delivery 
and the tentative mailbox locations. 

 
O. The applicant is advised that various State and Federal requirements (specifically but not 

limited to the Army Corps of Engineers, Kanopolis Project Office, Route 1, Box 317, Valley 
Center, KS 67147) for the control of soil and wind erosion and the protection of wetlands may 
impact how this site can be developed.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to contact all 
appropriate agencies to determine any such requirements. 

 
P. The owner of the subdivision should note that any construction that results in earthwork 

activities that will disturb one acre or more of ground cover requires a Federal/State National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Stormwater Discharge Permit from the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment in Topeka.  Also, for projects located within the City 
of Wichita, erosion and sediment control devices must be used on ALL projects.  For projects 
outside of the City of Wichita, but within the Wichita metropolitan area, the owner should 
contact the appropriate governmental jurisdiction concerning erosion and sediment control 
device requirements. 

 
Q. Perimeter closure computations shall be submitted with the final plat tracing. 
 

   R. Any and all relocation and removal of any existing equipment made necessary by this plat 
will be at the applicant’s expense.    

  
   S. A compact disk (CD) should be provided, which will be used by the City and County GIS 

Departments, detailing the final plat in digital format in AutoCAD.  Please include the name of 
the plat on the disk.  If a disk is not provided, please send the information via e-mail to Kathy 
Wilson (e-mail address:  kwilson@wichita.gov).   

 

47



METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION  AGENDA ITEM NO. 2-2 
         August 20, 2015 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: SUB2015-00022 – ESTANCIA ADDITION   
   
OWNER/APPLICANT: Tier 1, LLC, Attn: Marv Schellenberg, 7926 West 21st Street, 

Wichita, KS 67205 
 
SURVEYOR/AGENT: MKEC Engineering, Inc, Attn: Brian Lindebak, 411 North Webb 

Road, Wichita, KS 67206  
 

LOCATION: East of Ridge Road, on the north side of 37th Street North (District 
V)  

 
SITE SIZE:   72.63 acres  
 
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
 Residential:  173  
            Office:   
 Commercial:         
 Industrial:  __ 
 Total:   173 
 
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 6,231 square feet   
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Single-Family Residential (SF-5), Limited Commercial (LC)  
 
PROPOSED ZONING:        Single-Family Residential (SF-5) 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
VICINITY MAP 
 

 
 
 

48



SUB2015-00022 – Plat of ESTANCIA ADDITION 
August 20, 2015 - Page 2 
 
NOTE:  This is a final portion of an overall preliminary plat approved for site (The Valencia 
Addition) and represents the first phase of residential development.  The street layout and lot 
configuration is consistent with the preliminary plat.  The site is currently zoned Single-Family 
Residential (SF-5) and Limited Commercial (LC).  A zone change (ZON2015-00029) from 
Limited Commercial (LC) to Single-Family Residential (SF-5) has been approved by the MAPC 
for the southwest corner of the site.   
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 
A. City of Wichita Public Works and Utilities Department requests the extension of sanitary 

sewer (laterals) to serve all lots.  Water (distribution) needs extended to serve all lots.  In-lieu-
of-assessments are due for water transmission.  In-lieu-of-assessments are due for sewer 
mains.  A utility site plan has been requested.  If front-loaded sewer is not proposed, then the 
backyard utility easements along the reserves need to be increased to 20 feet. 

 
B. If improvements are guaranteed by petition(s), a notarized certificate listing the petition(s) 

shall be submitted to the Planning Department for recording. 
 
C. City Stormwater Management has approved the final drainage plan. 
  
D. Traffic Engineering has approved the access controls.  The plat proposes one street opening 

and an emergency access opening along 37th Street North.   
 
E. Since Reserves L and G includes a swimming pool, a site plan shall be submitted with the 

final plat for review by MAPD.  The site plan shall include the information indicated in the 
Subdivision Regulations.  The design for the pool must be submitted to Environmental Health 
Division for review prior to issuing a building permit for the pool. 

 
F. Provisions shall be made for ownership and maintenance of the proposed reserves.  The 

applicant shall either form a lot owners’ association prior to recording the plat or shall submit 
a restrictive covenant stating when the association will be formed, when the reserves will be 
deeded to the association and who is to own and maintain the reserves prior to the 
association taking over those responsibilities. 

  
G. For those reserves being platted for drainage purposes, the required covenant that provides 

for ownership and maintenance of the reserves, shall grant to the appropriate governing body 
the authority to maintain the drainage reserves in the event the owner(s) fail to do so.  The 
covenant shall provide for the cost of such maintenance to be charged back to the owner(s) 
by the governing body. 

 
H. City Fire Department has approved the street length of the southernmost Estancia Ct (over 

1000 feet long) and the Estancia Ct to its north (about 985 feet long) subject to a modification 
approved by MAPC.  The Subdivision Regulations limit urban cul-de-sacs to 800 feet in 
length.  The Subdivision Committee recommends a modification of the design criteria in 
Article 7 of the Subdivision Regulations as it finds that the strict application of the design 
criteria will create an unwarranted hardship, the proposed modification is in harmony with the 
intended purpose of the Subdivision Regulations and the public safety and welfare will be 
protected. 

 

49



SUB2015-00022 – Plat of ESTANCIA ADDITION 
August 20, 2015 - Page 3 
 
I. The cul-de-sac on Alameda Ct needs to be shown to meet the turning needs of the fire 

apparatus with the medians (Reserves I and J) proposed.  The cul-de-sacs on the three 
Estancia Cts need to be shown to meet the turning needs of the fire apparatus with the 
medians (Reserves N, K and E) proposed. 

 
J. City Fire Department advises that all cul-de-sacs on dead ends greater than 150 feet need to 

meet the standard of 38-foot minimum paved radius.   
 
K. An off-site temporary turnaround for both Estancia Street and Alameda Circle at the north line 

of the plat needs to be established by separate instrument.   
 
L. The Applicant shall guarantee the paving of the proposed residential streets.  The paving 

guarantee shall include the installation of the temporary turnarounds.  The guarantee shall 
also provide for sidewalks on at least one side of all residential loop streets.  A guarantee 
shall be submitted or a Sidewalk Certificate in lieu of a guarantee may be provided.   

 
M. The paving guarantee shall include the emergency access drive.  The emergency access 

easement shall be established by separate instrument.  The text of the instrument shall 
indicate the type of driving surface to be installed and address installation and maintenance. 
Standard gating and signing are required per City Fire Department standards.  

 
N. Since this plat proposes the platting of narrow street right-of-way with adjacent 15-foot street, 

drainage and utility easements, a restrictive covenant shall be submitted which calls out 
restrictions for lot-owner use of these easements.  Retaining walls and change of grade shall 
be prohibited within these easements as well as fences, earth berms and mass plantings.  

 
  O. Approval of this plat will require a waiver of the lot depth-to-width ratio of the Subdivision 

Regulations.  Most of the lots proposed for residential use located east of Valencia Ave 
exceed the standard.  The Subdivision Regulations state that the maximum depth of all 
residential lots shall not exceed 2.5 times the width.  The Subdivision Committee 
recommends a modification of the design criteria in Article 7 of the Subdivision Regulations 
as it finds that the strict application of the design criteria will create an unwarranted hardship, 
the proposed modification is in harmony with the intended purpose of the Subdivision 
Regulations and the public safety and welfare will be protected. 

 
  P. 86 lots proposed for residential use do not conform to the 50-foot lot width standard.  A 

modification may be granted by MAPC.  The Subdivision Committee recommends a 
modification of the design criteria in Article 7 of the Subdivision Regulations as it finds that 
the strict application of the design criteria will create an unwarranted hardship, the proposed 
modification is in harmony with the intended purpose of the Subdivision Regulations and the 
public safety and welfare will be protected. 

 
   Q. The Applicant has platted a 15-foot building setback along the end of the cul-de-sacs which 

represents an adjustment of the Zoning Code standard of 25 feet for the Single-Family 
District SF-5.  The Subdivision Regulations permit the setback provisions to be modified by 
the plat upon the approval of the Planning Commission. 

 
  R.  Sidewalk easements have been platted in Reserve P around the perimeter of the residential 

units.  “Public sidewalks” shall be referenced in the plattor’s text.  
 

50



SUB2015-00022 – Plat of ESTANCIA ADDITION 
August 20, 2015 - Page 4 
 

  S. In accordance with the Kansas Wetland Mapping Conventions under the Memorandum of 
Understanding between the United States Department of Agriculture - Natural Resources 
Conservation Service; United States Environmental Protection Agency; United States Army 
Corps of Engineers (USACE); and United States Fish and Wildlife Service, this site has been 
identified as one with potential wetland hydrology.  The USACE should be contacted (316-
322-8247) to have a wetland determination completed. 

 
  T. This property is within a zone identified by the City Engineer’s office as likely to have 

groundwater at some or all times within ten feet of the ground surface elevation.  Building 
with specially engineered foundations or with the lowest floor opening above groundwater is 
recommended and owners seeking building permits on this property will be similarly advised.  
More detailed information on recorded groundwater elevations in the vicinity of this property 
is available in the City Engineer’s office. 

 
  U. A CUP Certificate shall be submitted to MAPD prior to City Council consideration, identifying 

the approved CUP and its special conditions for development on this property. 
 

  V. The parking easements shall be referenced in the plattor’s text specifying that the easements 
are granted for residential parking only and that no obstructions shall be constructed or 
placed within the easements. 

 
  W. A revised preliminary plat shall be submitted.  
 
  X. GIS advises that Alameda already exists, and a new street name is needed.  “Serene Valley” 

already exists and “Valley” is a street type, therefore a new street name is needed for 
“Serene Valley”.  A new street name is needed for “Mira Bella” as one word road names are 
preferred and Bella has caused trouble in the past.   

 
  Y. County Surveying advises that there are missing dimensions, easements not located and 

missing curve data in several places.  Comments will be addressed when revised pdf’s are 
submitted prior to preparing mylar. 

 
  Z. County Surveying and MAPD requests review of a pdf prior to mylar submittal.  Send to 

tricia.robello@sedgwick.gov and nstrahl@wichita.gov. 
 
AA. City Environmental Health Division advises that any wells installed on the property for 

irrigation purposes will have to be properly permitted and inspected.  
 
BB. The plattor’s text shall include language that a drainage plan has been developed for the plat 

and that all drainage easements, rights-of-way, or reserves shall remain at established 
grades or as modified with the approval of the applicable City or County Engineer and 
unobstructed to allow for the conveyance of stormwater.  

 
  CC. The applicant shall install or guarantee the installation of all utilities and facilities that are 

applicable and described in Article 8 of the MAPC Subdivision Regulations.  (Water service 
and fire hydrants required by Article 8 for fire protection shall be as per the direction and 
approval of the Chief of the Fire Department.) 

 
DD. The Register of Deeds requires all names to be printed beneath the signatures on the plat 

and any associated documents.  
 

51



SUB2015-00022 – Plat of ESTANCIA ADDITION 
August 20, 2015 - Page 5 
 

EE. Prior to development of the plat, the applicant is advised to meet with the United States 
Postal Service Growth Management Coordinator (Phone:  316-946-4556) in order to receive 
mail delivery without delay, avoid unnecessary expense and determine the type of delivery 
and the tentative mailbox locations. 

 
 FF. The applicant is advised that various State and Federal requirements (specifically but not 

limited to the Army Corps of Engineers, Kanopolis Project Office, Route 1, Box 317, Valley 
Center, KS 67147) for the control of soil and wind erosion and the protection of wetlands may 
impact how this site can be developed.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to contact all 
appropriate agencies to determine any such requirements. 

 
GG. The owner of the subdivision should note that any construction that results in earthwork 

activities that will disturb one acre or more of ground cover requires a Federal/State National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Stormwater Discharge Permit from the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment in Topeka.  Also, for projects located within the City 
of Wichita, erosion and sediment control devices must be used on ALL projects.  For projects 
outside of the City of Wichita, but within the Wichita metropolitan area, the owner should 
contact the appropriate governmental jurisdiction concerning erosion and sediment control 
device requirements. 

 
 HH. Perimeter closure computations shall be submitted with the final plat tracing. 
 
 II.    Any and all relocation and removal of any existing equipment made necessary by this plat will 

be at the applicant’s expense 
 

 JJ.  A compact disk (CD) should be provided, which will be used by the City and County GIS 
Departments, detailing the final plat in digital format in AutoCAD.  Please include the name of 
the plat on the disk.  If a disk is not provided, please send the information via e-mail to Kathy 
Wilson (e-mail address:  kwilson@wichita.gov). 

52



METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION   AGENDA ITEM NO. 2-3 
          AUGUST 20, 2015 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: SUB2015-00024 – STEINKE 2ND ADDITION   
   
OWNER/APPLICANT: Collin M. and Sarah J. Steinke, 15709 West 47th Street South, 

Clearwater, KS 67026; Ronald and Elaine Steinke, 15509 West 
47th Street South, Clearwater, KS 67026 

 
SURVEYOR/AGENT: Ruggles and Bohm, P.A., Attn: Will Clevenger, 924 North Main, 

Wichita, KS 67203  
 

LOCATION: West of 151st Street West, on the south side of 47th Street South 
(County District III)  

 
SITE SIZE:   10.18 acres  
 
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
 Residential:  2  
            Office:   
 Commercial:         
 Industrial:  __ 
 Total:   2 
 
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 4.35 acres   
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Rural Residential (RR) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING:        Same 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
VICINITY MAP 
 

 

53



SUB2015-00024 -- Plat of STEINKE 2ND ADDITION 
August 20, 2015 - Page 2 
 
NOTE:  This site is located in the County within three miles of Wichita’s boundary.  It is in an 
area designated as “Wichita 2030 Urban Growth Area” by the Wichita-Sedgwick County 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 
A. Since sanitary sewer is unavailable to serve this property, the applicant shall contact 

Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department to find out what tests may be 
necessary and what standards are to be met for approval of on-site sewerage facilities.  A 
memorandum shall be obtained specifying approval. 

 
B. City of Wichita Public Works and Utilities Department has requested a No Protest Agreement 

for future extension of sanitary sewer (mains and laterals).  
 
C. The site is currently located within the Sedgwick County Rural Water District No. 4.  If service 

is available, feasible and the property is eligible for service, Metropolitan Area Building and 
Construction Department recommends connection.  The applicant has indicated that the rural 
water district currently serves both lots.  

 
D. If improvements are guaranteed by petition(s), a notarized certificate listing the petition(s) 

shall be submitted to the Planning Department for recording. 
 
E. County Public Works has approved the applicant’s drainage plan subject to a revision.  
 
F. The plat denotes one opening per lot at existing locations and one joint opening.  County 

Public Works has approved one opening per lot at the existing locations. The Subdivision 
Committee has approved one opening per lot at the existing locations.   

 
G. County Surveying advises that all monuments along the plat boundary need to be shown as 

found or set. 
 
H. Sedgwick County Fire Department advises that the plat will need to comply with the 

Sedgwick County Service Drive Code. 
 
I.  County Surveying and MAPD requests review of a pdf prior to mylar submittal.  Send to          

tricia.robello@sedgwick.gov and nstrahl@wichita.gov. 
 
J. The applicant shall install or guarantee the installation of all utilities and facilities that are 

applicable and described in Article 8 of the MAPC Subdivision Regulations.  (Water service 
and fire hydrants required by Article 8 for fire protection shall be as per the direction and 
approval of the Chief of the Fire Department.) 

 
K. The Register of Deeds requires all names to be printed beneath the signatures on the plat 

and any associated documents.  
 
L. Prior to development of the plat, the applicant is advised to meet with the United States 

Postal Service Growth Management Coordinator (Phone:  316-946-4556) in order to receive 
mail delivery without delay, avoid unnecessary expense and determine the type of delivery 
and the tentative mailbox locations. 

 

54



SUB2015-00024 -- Plat of STEINKE 2ND ADDITION 
August 20, 2015 - Page 3 
 
M. The applicant is advised that various State and Federal requirements (specifically but not 

limited to the Army Corps of Engineers, Kanopolis Project Office, Route 1, Box 317, Valley 
Center, KS 67147) for the control of soil and wind erosion and the protection of wetlands may 
impact how this site can be developed.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to contact all 
appropriate agencies to determine any such requirements. 

 
N. The owner of the subdivision should note that any construction that results in earthwork 

activities that will disturb one acre or more of ground cover requires a Federal/State National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Stormwater Discharge Permit from the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment in Topeka.  Also, for projects located within the City 
of Wichita, erosion and sediment control devices must be used on ALL projects.  For projects 
outside of the City of Wichita, but within the Wichita metropolitan area, the owner should 
contact the appropriate governmental jurisdiction concerning erosion and sediment control 
device requirements. 

 
O. Perimeter closure computations shall be submitted with the final plat tracing. 
 

   P. Any removal or relocation of existing equipment of utility companies will be at the applicant’s 
expense.    

  
   Q. A compact disk (CD) should be provided, which will be used by the City and County GIS 

Departments, detailing the final plat in digital format in AutoCAD.  Please include the name of 
the plat on the disk.  If a disk is not provided, please send the information via e-mail to Kathy 
Wilson (e-mail address:  kwilson@wichita.gov).   

 

55



 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION  AGENDA ITEM NO. 2-4 
         AUGUST 20, 2015 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: SUB2015-00025 – WEBB ROAD TOWNHOME ADDITION   
   
OWNER/APPLICANT: Marie Messer Family Trust, 349 County Road 2606, Bonham, TX 

75418-8304; Craig Allen Harms, 6 East Sequoia Drive, Wichita, 
KS 67206 

 
SURVEYOR/AGENT: K.E. Miller Engineering, 117 East Lewis, Wichita, KS 67202   

 
LOCATION: South of 45th Street North, on the West side of Webb (District II)  
 
SITE SIZE:   8.71 acres  
 
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
 Residential:  37  
            Office:   
 Commercial:         
 Industrial:  __ 
 Total:   37 
 
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 8100 square feet    
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Single-Family Residential (SF-5) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING:        Two-Family Residential (TF-3) 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
VICINITY MAP 
 

 

56



SUB2015-00025 -- Plat of WEBB ROAD TOWNHOME ADDITION 
August 20, 2015 - Page 2 
 
NOTE:  This is an unplatted site located within the City.  The site has been approved for a zone 
change (ZON2015-00022) from Single-Family Residential (SF-5) to Two-Family Residential 
(TF-3). 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 
A. City of Wichita Public Works and Utilities Department requests the extension of water 

(distribution) to serve all lots, and the extension of sewer (laterals) to serve Lots 1-19, Block 
2.  In-lieu-of-assessment fees are due for water transmission.  In-lieu-of-assessment fees are 
due for sewer mains.  In-lieu-of-assessment fees are due for sewer (laterals) for Lots 20-30 
Block 2 and Lots 1-7, Block 1. 

 
B. If improvements are guaranteed by petition(s), a notarized certificate listing the petition(s) 

shall be submitted to the Planning Department for recording. 
 
C. City Stormwater Management has approved the applicant’s drainage plan. 
 
D. The plattor’s text shall include language that the utility easements are hereby granted as 

indicated for the construction and maintenance of all public utilities. 
 
E. The plattor’s text shall include language that the drainage and utility easement is hereby 

granted as indicated for drainage purposes and for the construction and maintenance of all 
public utilities.  

 
F. The plattor’s text shall include language that the street, sidewalk, drainage and utility 

easement is hereby granted as indicated for street, sidewalk and drainage purposes and for 
the construction and maintenance of all public utilities.  

 
G. Traffic Engineering has approved the access controls.  The plat proposes complete access 

control along Webb Road except for one street opening. 
 
H. The applicant shall guarantee the closure of any driveway openings located in areas of 

complete access control or that exceed the number of allowed openings.  A Driveway 
Closure Certificate in lieu of a guarantee may be provided.  

 
I. The proposed street shall be increased in width to 32 feet, the narrow residential street 

standard.  
 
J. The applicant shall guarantee the paving of the proposed interior street.  For the narrow 32-

foot street, this guarantee shall be for the 29-foot paving standard.  
 
K. City Fire Department advises the turnaround must meet the minimum 38-foot paved radius 

requirement.   
 
L. County Surveying advises that street control monuments will need to be set or found along 

Champions, Plumthicket, the south line of 44th Street North, and the west line of Webb Road.  
 
M.  County Surveying advises 44th Street North should be labeled as “30’ Street Dedication”. 
 

57



SUB2015-00025 -- Plat of WEBB ROAD TOWNHOME ADDITION 
August 20, 2015 - Page 3 
 
N. County Surveying advises that it appears there is a blanket easement to Cities Service Gas 

(or KGS) along Webb Road, and most of the properties that have partial releases have an 
easement 75 feet from the Section line.  Any portion of this easement impacting this site shall 
be denoted on the plat and shall be properly referenced.  A recorded copy of any partial 
release or confinement of the easement shall be submitted. 

 
O. County Surveying would like to be contacted regarding the legal description and plat 

boundary. 
 
P. County Surveying requests submittal of title work and documents prior to final plat review. 
 
Q. The owner name and trustee name will need to be shown under the plattor’s text. 
 
R. The notary for the owner will need to include trust name and trustee name on behalf of the 

trust. 
 
S. GIS has advised that Champions needs to be labeled as “Champions Cir”.  Plumthicket 

needs labeled as “Plumthicket St”.   
 
T. The plattor’s text shall reference “Lots, Blocks, Streets and Reserves”.  
 
U. Provisions shall be made for ownership and maintenance of the proposed reserves.  The 

applicant shall either form a lot owners’ association prior to recording the plat or shall submit 
a restrictive covenant stating when the association will be formed, when the reserves will be 
deeded to the association and who is to own and maintain the reserves prior to the 
association taking over those responsibilities. 

 
V. For those reserves being platted for drainage purposes, the required covenant that provides 

for ownership and maintenance of the reserves, shall grant to the appropriate governing body 
the authority to maintain the drainage reserves in the event the owner(s) fail to do so.  The 
covenant shall provide for the cost of such maintenance to be charged back to the owner(s) 
by the governing body. 

 
W. Since this plat proposes the platting of narrow street right-of-way with adjacent 15-foot 

street, drainage and utility easements, a restrictive covenant shall be submitted which calls 
out restrictions for lot-owner use of these easements.  Retaining walls and change of grade 
shall be prohibited within these easements as well as fences, earth berms and mass 
plantings.  

 
X.  A bold line needs to be depicted for the boundaries of the plat.  A bold line should be denoted 

for the south line of 44th and the west line of Webb.  The vertical lines currently denoted at 
the street entrance (adjoining the 30.00’ label) shall be deleted.  

 
Y. In accordance with the Kansas Wetland Mapping Conventions under the Memorandum of 

Understanding between the United States Department of Agriculture - Natural Resources 
Conservation Service; United States Environmental Protection Agency; United States Army 
Corps of Engineers (USACE); and United States Fish and Wildlife Service, this site has been 
identified as one with potential wetland hydrology.  The USACE should be contacted (316-
322-8247) to have a wetland determination completed. 

 

58



SUB2015-00025 -- Plat of WEBB ROAD TOWNHOME ADDITION 
August 20, 2015 - Page 4 
 
Z. The applicant shall submit an avigational easement covering all of the subject plat and a 

restrictive covenant assuring that adequate construction methods will be used to minimize 
the effects of noise pollution in the habitable structures constructed on subject property. 

 
AA.  City Environmental Health Division advises that any wells installed on the properties for 

irrigation purposes will have to be properly permitted and inspected.  
 

BB. County Surveying and MAPD requests review of a pdf prior to mylar submittal.  Send to 
tricia.robello@sedgwick.gov and nstrahl@wichita.gov. 

 
CC. The Applicant is reminded that a platting binder is required with the final plat.  Approval of this 

plat will be subject to submittal of this binder and any relevant conditions found by such a 
review. 

 
DD. The applicant shall install or guarantee the installation of all utilities and facilities that are 

applicable and described in Article 8 of the MAPC Subdivision Regulations.  (Water service 
and fire hydrants required by Article 8 for fire protection shall be as per the direction and 
approval of the Chief of the Fire Department.) 

 
EE. The Register of Deeds requires all names to be printed beneath the signatures on the plat 

and any associated documents.  
 
FF. Prior to development of the plat, the applicant is advised to meet with the United States 

Postal Service Growth Management Coordinator (Phone:  316-946-4556) in order to receive 
mail delivery without delay, avoid unnecessary expense and determine the type of delivery 
and the tentative mailbox locations. 

 
GG. The applicant is advised that various State and Federal requirements (specifically but not 

limited to the Army Corps of Engineers, Kanopolis Project Office, Route 1, Box 317, Valley 
Center, KS 67147) for the control of soil and wind erosion and the protection of wetlands may 
impact how this site can be developed.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to contact all 
appropriate agencies to determine any such requirements. 

 
HH. The owner of the subdivision should note that any construction that results in earthwork 

activities that will disturb one acre or more of ground cover requires a Federal/State National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Stormwater Discharge Permit from the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment in Topeka.  Also, for projects located within the City 
of Wichita, erosion and sediment control devices must be used on ALL projects.  For projects 
outside of the City of Wichita, but within the Wichita metropolitan area, the owner should 
contact the appropriate governmental jurisdiction concerning erosion and sediment control 
device requirements. 

 
II. Perimeter closure computations shall be submitted with the final plat tracing. 
 
JJ.   Any removal or relocation of existing equipment of utility companies will be at the applicant’s 

expense.    
  
KK.  A compact disk (CD) should be provided, which will be used by the City and County GIS 

Departments, detailing the final plat in digital format in AutoCAD.  Please include the name of 
the plat on the disk.  If a disk is not provided, please send the information via e-mail to Kathy 
Wilson (e-mail address:  kwilson@wichita.gov).   

59



 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION  AGENDA ITEM NO. 2-5 
         August 20, 2015 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: SUB2015-00026 – ESTANCIA COMMERCIAL ADDITION   
   
OWNER/APPLICANT: Tier 1, LLC, Attn: Marv Schellenberg, 7926 West 21st Street, 

Wichita, KS 67205 
 
SURVEYOR/AGENT: MKEC Engineering, Inc, Attn: Brian Lindebak, 411 North Webb 

Road, Wichita, KS 67206  
 

LOCATION: East side of Ridge Road, between K-96 Highway and 37th Street 
North (District V)  

 
SITE SIZE:   41.62 acres  
 
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
 Residential:    
            Office:   
 Commercial:  13       
 Industrial:  __ 
 Total:   13 
 
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 2,500 square feet   
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Single-Family-Residential (SF-5), Limited Commercial (LC) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING:        Limited Commercial (LC), General Commercial (GC)  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
VICINITY MAP 
 

  

60



SUB2015-00026 – Plat of ESTANCIA COMMERCIAL ADDITION 
August 20, 2015 - Page 2 
 
NOTE:  This is the final portion of an overall preliminary plat approved for site (The Valencia 
Addition, SUB2015-00022) and represents the first phase of commercial development.  The 
street layout and lot configuration is consistent with the preliminary plat.      
 
The site is currently zoned Single-Family Residential (SF-5) and Limited Commercial (LC).  A 
zone change (ZON2015-00029) was approved by MAPC from Single-Family Residential (SF-5) 
and Limited Commercial (LC) to General Commercial (GC) and Limited Commercial (LC).  A 
Community Unit Plan (CUP2015-00015, DP-337) was also approved.  
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 
A. City of Wichita Public Works and Utilities Department requests the extension of sanitary 

sewer (laterals) to serve all lots.  Water (distribution) needs extended to serve all lots.  In-lieu-
of-assessments are due for water transmission.  In-lieu-of-assessments are due for sewer 
mains.   

 
B. If improvements are guaranteed by petition(s), a notarized certificate listing the petition(s) 

shall be submitted to the Planning Department for recording. 
 
C. City Stormwater Management has approved the final drainage plan is needed.  
 
D. Traffic Engineering has approved the access controls.  The plat proposes two street 

openings along Ridge with other access openings per access management standards.  The 
plat proposes one access opening along 37th Street North.   

 
E. Provisions shall be made for ownership and maintenance of the proposed reserves.  The 

applicant shall either form a lot owners’ association prior to recording the plat or shall submit 
a restrictive covenant stating when the association will be formed, when the reserves will be 
deeded to the association and who is to own and maintain the reserves prior to the 
association taking over those responsibilities. 

  
F. For those reserves being platted for drainage purposes, the required covenant that provides 

for ownership and maintenance of the reserves, shall grant to the appropriate governing body 
the authority to maintain the drainage reserves in the event the owner(s) fail to do so.  The 
covenant shall provide for the cost of such maintenance to be charged back to the owner(s) 
by the governing body. 

 
G. An off-site temporary turnaround for Village Circle needs to be established by separate 

instrument. 
 
H. The width of the commercial streets is less than the 70-foot required right-of-way.  Traffic/City 

Engineering has approved the width if restricted to No Parking on both sides of the streets.  A 
restrictive covenant shall be provided specifying the No Parking requirement. 

 
I. The Applicant shall guarantee the paving of the streets to the business street standard.  The 

paving guarantee shall include the installation of a temporary turnaround at the terminus of 
Village Circle.   

 
J. As the plat consists of commercial lots abutting non-arterial streets, the Subdivision 

regulations require sidewalks along the interior street frontage.  A guarantee shall be 
submitted or a Sidewalk Certificate in lieu of a guarantee may be provided. 

 

61



SUB2015-00026 – Plat of ESTANCIA COMMERCIAL ADDITION 
August 20, 2015 - Page 3 
 
K. In accordance with the proposed CUP, a cross-lot circulation agreement is needed to assure 

internal vehicular movement between the lots. 
   

   L. In accordance with the Kansas Wetland Mapping Conventions under the Memorandum of 
Understanding between the United States Department of Agriculture - Natural Resources 
Conservation Service; United States Environmental Protection Agency; United States Army 
Corps of Engineers (USACE); and United States Fish and Wildlife Service, this site has been 
identified as one with potential wetland hydrology.  The USACE should be contacted (316-
322-8247) to have a wetland determination completed. 

 
 M. This property is within a zone identified by the City Engineer’s office as likely to have 

groundwater at some or all times within ten feet of the ground surface elevation.  Building 
with specially engineered foundations or with the lowest floor opening above groundwater is 
recommended and owners seeking building permits on this property will be similarly advised.  
More detailed information on recorded groundwater elevations in the vicinity of this property 
is available in the City Engineer’s office. 

 
  N. A CUP Certificate shall be submitted to MAPD prior to City Council consideration, identifying 

the approved CUP and its special conditions for development on this property. 
 

  O. A revised preliminary plat shall be submitted. 
 
  P. County Surveying requests to be contacted regarding three corrections to the legal 

description.  
 
  Q. County Surveying and MAPD requests review of a pdf prior to mylar submittal.  Send to 

tricia.robello@sedgwick.gov and nstrahl@wichita.gov. 
 
  R. City Environmental Health Division advises that any wells installed on the property for 

irrigation purposes will have to be properly permitted and inspected.  
 

   S. The applicant shall install or guarantee the installation of all utilities and facilities that are 
applicable and described in Article 8 of the MAPC Subdivision Regulations.  (Water service 
and fire hydrants required by Article 8 for fire protection shall be as per the direction and 
approval of the Chief of the Fire Department.) 

 
  T. The Register of Deeds requires all names to be printed beneath the signatures on the plat 

and any associated documents.  
 
  U. Prior to development of the plat, the applicant is advised to meet with the United States 

Postal Service Growth Management Coordinator (Phone:  316-946-4556) in order to receive 
mail delivery without delay, avoid unnecessary expense and determine the type of delivery 
and the tentative mailbox locations. 

 
   V. The applicant is advised that various State and Federal requirements (specifically but not 

limited to the Army Corps of Engineers, Kanopolis Project Office, Route 1, Box 317, Valley 
Center, KS 67147) for the control of soil and wind erosion and the protection of wetlands may 
impact how this site can be developed.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to contact all 
appropriate agencies to determine any such requirements. 

 

62



SUB2015-00026 – Plat of ESTANCIA COMMERCIAL ADDITION 
August 20, 2015 - Page 4 
 

  W. The owner of the subdivision should note that any construction that results in earthwork 
activities that will disturb one acre or more of ground cover requires a Federal/State National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Stormwater Discharge Permit from the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment in Topeka.  Also, for projects located within the City 
of Wichita, erosion and sediment control devices must be used on ALL projects.  For projects 
outside of the City of Wichita, but within the Wichita metropolitan area, the owner should 
contact the appropriate governmental jurisdiction concerning erosion and sediment control 
device requirements. 

 
    X. Perimeter closure computations shall be submitted with the final plat tracing. 
 
  Y. Westar Energy has requested additional easements.  Richard Aitken is the Area Construction 

Services Representative for this plat and he can be reached at 316-261-6734.  Any and all 
relocation and removal of any existing equipment made necessary by this plat will be at the 
applicant’s expense.   

 
  Z.  Any and all relocation and removal of any existing equipment made necessary by this plat will 

be at the applicant’s expense 
 

  AA. A compact disk (CD) should be provided, which will be used by the City and County GIS 
Departments, detailing the final plat in digital format in AutoCAD.  Please include the name of 
the plat on the disk.  If a disk is not provided, please send the information via e-mail to Kathy 
Wilson (e-mail address:  kwilson@wichita.gov). 

 

63



 
  AGENDA ITEM NO.    3-1 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION August 20, 2015 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2015-00028 - Request to vacate portions of a platted setback and a utility 

easement dedicated by separate instrument 
 
OWNER/AGENT: Paul & Eleanor Sade Trust (owner) Dillon Stores Inc. (applicant) PEC, c/o 

Charlie Brown (agent) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as the east 20 feet of the platted 100-foot setback running 

parallel to the west property line of Lot 4, Chadsworth Commercial 2nd Addition 
and a portion of the utility easement dedicated by separate instrument (Film 2881, 
Page 4832; see attached legal and exhibits) located in Lot 4, Chadsworth 
Commercial 2nd Addition, Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas  

 
LOCATION: Generally located on the northeast corner 21st Street North and Maize Road (WCC 

#V) 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST: Canopy for drive through lane of pharmacy  
 
CURRENT ZONING: The site (CUP DP-204) and the abutting north and adjacent south properties are 

zoned LC Limited Commercial.  The abutting east properties are zoned SF-5 
Single-Family Residential.  The adjacent west properties are zoned LC and GC 
General Commercial.  

VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 
 

64



VAC2015-00028 – Request to vacate a portion of a platted setback and a portion of a utility easement dedicated by separate instrument 
August 20, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 

 
The applicant proposes to build a canopy for the drive through pharmacy, which encroaches into a platted setback 
and a utility easement dedicated by separate instrument.  The applicant is requesting the vacation of the east 20 feet 
of the platted 100-foot setback running parallel to the west property line of Lot 4, Chadsworth Commercial 2nd 

Addition.  The Limited Commercial (LC) zoned subject is part of Community Unit Plan CUP DP-204 overlay.  
The minimum street side yard or front yard setback for a CUP is 35 feet; the applicant’s request leaves 80 feet of 
setback.  
 
The applicant is also requesting the vacation of  the east 5.52-ft (x) 23.84-dt – 31.11 long section of a 20-foot wide 
utility easement dedicated by separate instrument (Film 2881, Page 4832) as shown and described on the attached 
exhibit and legal description.  There is a sewer line located within the described portion of the subject easement, 
which is located in Lot 4, Chadsworth Commercial 2nd Addition.  The applicant’s exhibit shows a proposed 
replacement easement.  The Westar Construction Services Representative for the NW area can be contacted at 
261-6734 . The Chadsworth Commercial 2nd Addition was recorded with the Register of Deeds August 14, 1995.        
 
Note:  Previously VAC2011-00019 vacated a south portion of the utility easement dedicated by separate 
instrument located in Lot 5, Chadsworth Commercial 2nd Addition.   The sewer line located in that portion of the 
easement was reverted into a private sewer line.  
 
Note:  The published MAPC public hearing meeting of August 6, 2015, for VAC2015-00028 was cancelled due to 
the lack of a quorum, the resulting being the consideration of VAC2015-00028 for the August 20, 2015, MAPC 
public hearing meeting.     
   
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations 
based on subsequent comments from City Public Works, Water & Sewer, Stormwater, Traffic, Fire, franchised 
utility representatives and other interested parties, Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not 
limited to) associated with the request to vacate the described portions of the platted setback and the utility 
easement dedicated by separate instrument. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the 
propriety of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of 

notice of this vacation proceeding one time July 16, 2015, which was at least 20 days prior to this 
public hearing. 
 

2. That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the described portions of the platted 
setback and the utility easement dedicated by separate instrument and that the public will suffer no 
loss or inconvenience thereby. 

 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

65



VAC2015-00028 – Request to vacate a portion of a platted setback and a portion of a utility easement dedicated by separate instrument 
August 20, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 
 

 
Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 

(1) Vacate the east 20 feet of the platted 100-foot setback running parallel to the west property line of Lot 4, 
Chadsworth Commercial 2nd Addition.  Show the new 80-foot setback on an adjusted CUP DP-204 and 
reference the vacation case, VAC2015-00028, on the adjusted CUP.   

 
(2) Provide all utilities with any needed project plans for the relocation of utilities for review and approval.  

Relocation/reconstruction of all utilities made necessary by this vacation shall be to City Standards and 
shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicants.  Provide approved project numbers to 
Planning prior to the case going to City Council for final action.   
 

(3) Provide to Planning any required easements dedicated by separate instrument with original signatures for 
public utilities for recording with the Vacation Order at the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds.  This must 
be provided prior to the case going to City Council for final action.          

 
(4) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicants’ expense.   

 
(5) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the 

MAPC or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete 
until the Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final 
action on the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, 
County and/or franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of 
Deeds  

 
 
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Subdivision Committee recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 
 

(1) Vacate the east 20 feet of the platted 100-foot setback running parallel to the west property line of Lot 4, 
Chadsworth Commercial 2nd Addition.  Show the new 80-foot setback on an adjusted CUP DP-204 and 
reference the vacation case, VAC2015-00028, on the adjusted CUP.   

 
(2) Provide all utilities with any needed project plans for the relocation of utilities for review and approval.  

Relocation/reconstruction of all utilities made necessary by this vacation shall be to City Standards and 
shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicants.  Provide approved project numbers to 
Planning prior to the case going to City Council for final action.   
 

(3) Provide to Planning any required easements dedicated by separate instrument with original signatures for 
public utilities for recording with the Vacation Order at the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds.  This must 
be provided prior to the case going to City Council for final action.          

 
(4) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicants’ expense.   

 

66



VAC2015-00028 – Request to vacate a portion of a platted setback and a portion of a utility easement dedicated by separate instrument 
August 20, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 
 

(5) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the 
MAPC or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete 
until the Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final 
action on the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, 
County and/or franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of 
Deeds  

 
 
 
 
 

67



 
  AGENDA REPORT NO.   3-2 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION August 20, 2015 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2015-00029 - City request to vacate a drainage easement dedicated by 

separate instrument    

OWNER/AGENT: Contrail Development LLC (owner) K.E. Miller Engineering P.A., c/o Kirk Miller 
(agent) 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as vacating an east-west 20-foot drainage easement dedicated 

by separate instrument (Film 2093, Page 185) located on the common lot line of 
Lots 8 and 9, Block 2, Airport Industrial Park Addition, Wichita, Sedgwick 
County, Kansas. 

 
LOCATION: Generally located south of Harry Street, west of Hoover Road, on the west side of 

Hoover Court (WCC #IV) 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST: Expansion   
 
CURRENT ZONING: The site and all abutting and adjacent properties are zoned LI Limited Industrial     
 
VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 
 
 

68



VAC2015-00029 – Request to vacate a drainage easement dedicated by separate instrument    
August 20, 2015  
Page 2 
 
 

 
 

The applicant propose to vacate the east-west 20-foot drainage easement dedicated by separate instrument  located 
on the common lot line of Lots 8 and 9, Block 2, Airport Industrial Park Addition; Film 2093, Page 185.  There is 
stormwater conduit and equipment located in the easement.  The applicant proposes to re-locate the stormwater 
conduit and equipment located in the easement.   The Westar Construction Services Representative for the SW 
Area is the contact for this item and can be contacted at 261-6734.   The Airport Industrial Park Addition was 
recorded December 18, 1964. 
 
Note:  Previously VAC2007-00028 vacated a portion of platted street side yard setback on Lots 8 and 9 (and other 
lots), Block 2, Airport Industrial Park Addition, as well as a platted 40-foot half-street ROW, running parallel to 
the south lot line of Lots 9 Block 2, Airport Industrial Park Addition (as well as other lots).    
 
Note:  The published MAPC public hearing meeting of August 6, 2015, for VAC2015-00029 was cancelled due to 
the lack of a quorum, the resulting being the consideration of VAC2015-00029 for the August 20, 2015, MAPC 
public hearing meeting.     
 
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations 
based on subsequent comments from City Traffic, Public Works/Water & Sewer/Stormwater, Fire, franchised 
utility representatives and other interested parties, Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not 
limited to) associated with the request to vacate the described drainage easement dedicated by separate instrument. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the 
propriety of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of 

notice of this vacation proceeding one time July 16, 2015, which was at least 20 days prior to this 
public hearing. 
 

2. That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the drainage easement dedicated by 
separate instrument and that the public will suffer no loss or inconvenience thereby. 

 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 
 
Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 

(1) Abandonment or relocation/reconstruction of any/all utilities, including Stormwater, made necessary by 
this vacation shall be to City Standards and shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicant.  
As needed provide an approved private project plan number for the abandonment /relocation of public 
utilities.  As needed provide approval from franchised utilities for the relocation of franchised utilities.  All 
to be provided to the Planning Department prior to this case going to City Council for final action.   

 
(2) Provide Planning with any needed easements, with original signatures, for relocated utilities, prior to this 

case going to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at the register 
of Deeds.  Provided to the Planning Department prior to this case going to City Council for final action.    
 

69



VAC2015-00029 – Request to vacate a drainage easement dedicated by separate instrument    
August 20, 2015  
Page 3 
 
 

 
 

(3) Provide Planning with a legal description of the vacated portion of the public utility easement dedicated by 
separate instrument on a Word document via E-mail that can be used on the Vacation Order.  This must be 
provided to the Planning Department prior to this case going to City Council for final action.  
 

(4) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the 
MAPC or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete 
until the Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final 
action on the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, 
County and/or franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of 
Deeds.  

 
 
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Subdivision Committee recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 
 

(1) Abandonment or relocation/reconstruction of any/all utilities, including Stormwater, made necessary by 
this vacation shall be to City Standards and shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicant.  
As needed provide an approved private project plan number for the abandonment /relocation of public 
utilities.  As needed provide approval from franchised utilities for the relocation of franchised utilities.  All 
to be provided to the Planning Department prior to this case going to City Council for final action.   

 
(2) Provide Planning with any needed easements, with original signatures, for relocated utilities, prior to this 

case going to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at the register 
of Deeds.  Provided to the Planning Department prior to this case going to City Council for final action.    
 

(3) Provide Planning with a legal description of the vacated portion of the public utility easement dedicated by 
separate instrument on a Word document via E-mail that can be used on the Vacation Order.  This must be 
provided to the Planning Department prior to this case going to City Council for final action.  
 

(4) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the 
MAPC or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete 
until the Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final 
action on the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, 
County and/or franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of 
Deeds.  

 

70



 
   AGENDA REPORT NO.    3-3 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION August 20, 2015 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2015-00030 - City request to vacate a portion of a platted access control  
 
APPLICANT/AGENT: Rock Road Court LLC, Amy Liebau (applicant) MKEC Engineering, Inc., c/o 

Brian Lindebak (agent) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as vacating the south 40 feet of the platted complete access 

control located on the east property line of Lot 13, Brad Boone Addition, to allow a 
drive/access onto Rock Road, Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas. 

 
LOCATION: Generally located south of 21st Street North, on the west side of Rock Road 

and south of North Rock Road Court (WCC #II) 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST: To allow a drive 
 
CURRENT ZONING: The site and the adjacent east and south properties are zoned LC Limited 

Commercial.  The abutting north and west properties are zoned GO General Office.  
 
VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

71



VAC2015-00030 Request to vacate a portion of platted complete access control 
August 20, 2015 
Page 2 

 
 

 
 
The applicant proposes to vacate the south 40 feet of the platted complete access control located on the east, 
279.52-foot long property line of Lot 13, Brad Boone Addition.  As platted, Lot 13 is not permitted a drive/access 
onto the arterial street, Rock Road.  Lot 13’s access is off of the north abutting cul-de-sac Rock Road Court, which 
intersects with Rock Road and is 239 feet north of the proposed drive.  Rock Road has four-lanes at this location.  
There are no drives located east, across Rock Road from the site.  The property located east of the site, across Rock 
Road, is not permitted access onto Rock Road along its 697.42 feet of Rock Road frontage; Lot 1, Block 1, 
Bradley Fair 4th Addition.  The 99.01-foot wide rails to trails pedestrian – bike path abuts the site’s south side and 
its width contributes to the 220 feet of separation from the proposed drive and the closest drive located south.  The 
closest drive north of the site is located approximately 580 feet away, separated form the subject area by Rock 
Road Court.  The current Access Management Regulations standard for a right-in – right-out drive is 200 feet 
between drives or arterial intersections and 400 feet between full movement drives or arterial intersections.  Per the 
Subdivision Regulations, Art 10-104, Modification of Design Criteria, Art VII – Design Standards – Part 2 
Specific Standards – 7-204, L, the MAPC may modify design criteria.  In the past staff has recommended modified 
design criteria, which has been approved by the MAPC.  The proposed drive would be located within a platted 
100-foot wide KG & E easement and Westar has power poles and lines located within the easement; the easement 
will remain.  This is a private easement and the applicant would need to get approval from the utility for the 
proposed drive.  A parking lot is currently located within this easement.  There is water line and stormwater 
conduit and equipment in the area of the vacation.  Kansas Gas Service has an 8” steel pipeline and gas valve 
located within the proposed vacation limits. The installation of a drive may require the relocation of our facilities at 
the applicant’s expense.  The Brad Boone Addition was recorded with the Register of Deeds April 1, 1981. 
 
Note:  Previously VAC2007-00045 vacated 40-feet of the platted 70-foot street side setback along the subject 
site’s Rock Road frontage. 
 
Note:  The published MAPC public hearing meeting of August 6, 2015, for VAC2015-00030 was cancelled due to 
the lack of a quorum, the resulting being the consideration of VAC2015-00030 for the August 20, 2015, MAPC 
public hearing meeting.     
   
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations 
based on subsequent comments from City Traffic, Public Works/Water & Sewer/Stormwater, Fire, franchised 
utility representatives and other interested parties, Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not 
limited to) associated with the request to vacate the described portion of platted complete access control. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the 
propriety of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of 

notice of this vacation proceeding one time July 16, 2015, which was at least 20 days prior to this 
public hearing. 
 

2. That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the described portion of platted 
compete access control and that the public will suffer no loss or inconvenience thereby. 

 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 

72



VAC2015-00030 Request to vacate a portion of platted complete access control 
August 20, 2015 
Page 3 

 
 

 
Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 

(1) Per the approval of the Traffic Engineer, vacate the south 40 feet of the platted complete access control 
located on the east, 279.52-foot long property line of Lot 13, Brad Boone Addition.  Provide a dedication of 
access control allowing two drives, with original signatures, to Planning Staff prior to the case going to 
Council for final action.   
 

(2) Provide written approval from Westar and Kansas Gas Service to locate a drive in the platted 100-foot wide 
KG & E easement.  For Westar contact Greg Roy, Technical Specialist, Design in Transmission Engineering 
at 1-785-575-8167.  For Kansas Gas Service contact Joseph A Bridgewater at 832-3158.    This must be 
provided to Planning prior to the case going to Council for final action.         

 
(3) Any relocation or reconstruction of utilities, including Westar’s and Kansas Gas Service’s equipment, made 

necessary by this vacation shall be the responsibility of the applicants and at the applicants’ expense.  
Provide all needed plans for review and approval by utilities.  Provide Planning with any plans as approved 
by the utilities. This must be provided to Planning prior to the case going to Council for final action. 

 
(4) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicant’s expense. 

 
(5) Provide Planning Staff with a legal description of the approved vacated portion of the platted complete 

access control on a Word document, via e-mail, to be used on the Vacation Order.  This must be provided 
prior to the request proceeds to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation 
Order at the Register of Deeds.      

 
(6) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the 

MAPC  
or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the         
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County 
and/or franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds. 

 
 

SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Subdivision Committee recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 
 

(1) Per the approval of the Traffic Engineer, vacate the south 40 feet of the platted complete access control 
located on the east, 279.52-foot long property line of Lot 13, Brad Boone Addition.  Provide a dedication of 
access control allowing two drives, with original signatures, to Planning Staff prior to the case going to 
Council for final action.   
 

(2) Provide written approval from Westar and Kansas Gas Service to locate a drive in the platted 100-foot wide 
KG & E easement.  For Westar contact Greg Roy, Technical Specialist, Design in Transmission Engineering 
at 1-785-575-8167.  For Kansas Gas Service contact Joseph A Bridgewater at 832-3158.  This must be 
provided to Planning prior to the case going to Council for final action.         

 

73



VAC2015-00030 Request to vacate a portion of platted complete access control 
August 20, 2015 
Page 4 

 
 

 
 

(3) Any relocation or reconstruction of utilities, including Westar’s and Kansas Gas Service’s equipment, made 
necessary by this vacation shall be the responsibility of the applicants and at the applicants’ expense.  
Provide all needed plans for review and approval by utilities.  Provide Planning with any plans as approved 
by the utilities. This must be provided to Planning prior to the case going to Council for final action. 

 
(4) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicant’s expense. 

 
(5) Provide Planning Staff with a legal description of the approved vacated portion of the platted complete 

access control on a Word document, via e-mail, to be used on the Vacation Order.  This must be provided 
prior to the request proceeds to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation 
Order at the Register of Deeds.      

 
(6) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the 

MAPC  
or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the         
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County 
and/or franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds. 

 

74



 
  AGENDA ITEM NO.   3-4  
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION August 20, 2015 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2015-00031 - Request to vacate portions of platted floodway easements and 

the minimum pad elevations 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Jon C & Andrea C. Parks (owner) Baughman Company, P.A., c/o Phil Meyer 
 (applicant) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as vacating portions of the platted floodway easement located 

along the common lot line of Lots 1 & 2, and the minimum pad elevations of said 
lots, Four Oaks Addition, Sedgwick County, Kansas (see legal description and 
exhibit) 

 
LOCATION: Generally located west of 127th Street East on the south side of 37th Street North 

(BoCC #1) 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST: Remove proposed building from floodway easement 
 
CURRENT ZONING: The site and all abutting and adjacent properties are zoned RR Rural Residential  
 
VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

75



VAC2015-00031 – Request to vacate portions of platted floodway easements and the minimum pad elevations 
August 20, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 

 
The applicants are requesting the vacation of portions of a platted floodway easement located along the common 
lot line of Lots 1 & 2, and the minimum pad elevations of said lots, Four Oaks Addition.  The floodway easement 
is located within a FEMA Type A Flood Zone.  The plattor’s text states that no structure shall be constructed on or 
within the floodway easement, nor shall any change of grade, creation of grade, creation of channel or other work 
be carried on without the approval of the engineer of the appropriate governing body.  The minimum pad elevation 
of Lot 1 is 1,370 feet and the minimum pad elevation of Lot 2 is 1,367 feet.  There is no public water, sewer, or 
stormwater equipment in the described portion of the reserve.  The Four Oaks Addition was recorded with the 
Register of Deeds February 3, 2000.  
 
NOTE:  Per the Subdivision Regulations Article 5-502.  Changes to Minimum Pad Elevations on Recorded 
Plats.  If, after recording a subdivision plat where minimum pad elevations are shown, new floodway/drainage 
information becomes available that would change the minimum pad elevation requirement, the appropriate 
engineer (of either the City or County), after verifying the change in floodway/drainage information and after 
notifying the owner(s) of record of the lot(s) involved, by certified mail to their last known address, or after 
receiving the request of the owner(s) of record of the lot(s) involved, may file an affidavit with the Register of 
Deeds, describing the nature and extent of the minimum pad elevation change(s).  The change(s) may not increase 
the required minimum pad elevation unless the lot(s) affected is (are) undeveloped on the date the affidavit is 
recorded.  The Register of Deeds shall record the affidavit and shall place in the margin of the recorded plat a 
notation that the affidavit has been filed, the date of the filing and the book and page where it is recorded.  The 
filing of the affidavit shall change the minimum pad elevations on the lots as noted in the affidavit, but shall have 
no effect on the validity of the plat or any property interest recorded by reference thereto. 
    
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations 
based on subsequent comments from County Public Works, Water & Sewer, Stormwater, Traffic, Fire, franchised 
utility representatives and other interested parties, Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not 
limited to) associated with the request to vacate the described portion of the platted floodway easement and the 
minimum pad elevations. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the 
propriety of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of 

notice of this vacation proceeding one time July 30, 2015, which was at least 20 days prior to this 
public hearing. 
 

2. That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the described portion of the platted 
floodway easement and the minimum pad elevations and that the public will suffer no loss or 
inconvenience thereby. 

 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 
 
 
 
 

76



VAC2015-00031 – Request to vacate portions of platted floodway easements and the minimum pad elevations 
August 20, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 
 

Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 

(1) Vacate portions of a platted floodway easement located along the common lot line of Lots 1 & 2, and the 
minimum pad elevations of said lots, Four Oaks Addition, as approved by the County Engineer.  As needed 
apply for a revisions of the FEMA Flood Map with the County Engineer/Corps of Engineers.    
 

(2) Provide an approved legal description of the vacated portion of the platted floodway easement on a Word 
document via E-mail. Provide to Planning for the Vacation Order, prior to the case going to the County 
Commission for final action. 
 

(3) File an affidavit with the Register of Deeds, describing the nature and extent of the minimum pad elevation 
change(s).  The change(s) may not increase the required minimum pad elevation unless the lot(s) affected is 
(are) undeveloped on the date the affidavit is recorded.  The Register of Deeds shall record the affidavit and 
shall place in the margin of the recorded plat a notation that the affidavit has been filed, the date of the 
filing and the book and page where it is recorded.  The filing of the affidavit shall change the minimum pad 
elevations on the lots as noted in the affidavit, but shall have no effect on the validity of the plat or any 
property interest recorded by reference thereto.    

 
(4) Provide utilities with any needed project plans for the relocation of utilities for review and approval.  

Relocation/reconstruction of all utilities made necessary by this vacation shall be to County Standards and 
shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicants.  Provide an approved project number to 
Planning prior to the case going to the County Commission for final action.   

 
(5) All improvements shall be according to County Standards and at the applicants’ expense.   

 
(6) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the 

MAPC or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete 
until the Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final 
action on the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, 
County and/or franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of 
Deeds  

 
 
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Subdivision Committee recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 
 

(1) Vacate portions of a platted floodway easement located along the common lot line of Lots 1 & 2, and the 
minimum pad elevations of said lots, Four Oaks Addition, as approved by the County Engineer.  As needed 
apply for a revisions of the FEMA Flood Map with the County Engineer/Corps of Engineers.    
 

(2) Provide an approved legal description of the vacated portion of the platted floodway easement on a Word 
document via E-mail. Provide to Planning for the Vacation Order, prior to the case going to the County 
Commission for final action. 
 

77



VAC2015-00031 – Request to vacate portions of platted floodway easements and the minimum pad elevations 
August 20, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 
 

(3) File an affidavit with the Register of Deeds, describing the nature and extent of the minimum pad elevation 
change(s).  The change(s) may not increase the required minimum pad elevation unless the lot(s) affected is 
(are) undeveloped on the date the affidavit is recorded.  The Register of Deeds shall record the affidavit and 
shall place in the margin of the recorded plat a notation that the affidavit has been filed, the date of the 
filing and the book and page where it is recorded.  The filing of the affidavit shall change the minimum pad 
elevations on the lots as noted in the affidavit, but shall have no effect on the validity of the plat or any 
property interest recorded by reference thereto.    

 
(4) Provide utilities with any needed project plans for the relocation of utilities for review and approval.  

Relocation/reconstruction of all utilities made necessary by this vacation shall be to County Standards and 
shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicants.  Provide an approved project number to 
Planning prior to the case going to the County Commission for final action.   

 
(5) All improvements shall be according to County Standards and at the applicants’ expense.   

 
(6) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the 

MAPC or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete 
until the Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final 
action on the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, 
County and/or franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of 
Deeds  

 
 
 

78



 
  AGENDA REPORT NO.  3-5  
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION August 20, 2015 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2015-00032 - Request to vacate easements dedicated by separate instruments    
 
OWNER/AGENT: Verandas at Crestview I LLC (owner) Baughman Co. PA c/o Phil Meyer (agent) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as vacating a 20-foot wide waterline easement dedicated by 

separate instrument (FLM-PG: 28406470) and a 20-foot wide sanitary sewer 
easement dedicated by separate instrument (FLM-PG: 29406469) located on Lot 2, 
Block E, Meadowland Addition, Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas. (see legal 
description and exhibit) 

 
LOCATION: Generally located north of Kellogg- 1-35, on the east side of 127th Street East, and 

east of Douglas Avenue (WCC #II) 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST: Future development    
 
CURRENT ZONING: The site and the abutting north property are zoned MF-18 Multi-Family 

Residential.  Abutting south and adjacent northwest (across 127th Street East) 
properties are zoned SF-5 Single-Family Residential.  Adjacent west properties 
(across 127th Street East) are zoned SF-20.  Abutting east property is K-96 right-of-
way.     

VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 
 

79



VAC2015-00032 – Request to vacate easements dedicated by separate instruments    
August 20, 2015  
Page 2 
 
 

 
 

 
The applicant proposes to vacate a 20-foot wide waterline easement dedicated by separate instrument (FLM-PG: 
28406470) and a 20-foot wide sanitary sewer easement dedicated by separate instrument (FLM-PG: 29406469) 
located on the undeveloped Lot 2, Block E, Meadowland Addition.  Much of the site is located within a FEMA 
Flood Zone.  There appears to be no utilities located within the subject easements.  The Meadowland Addition was 
recorded with the Register of Deeds April 3, 2002.   
 
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations 
based on subsequent comments from City Traffic, Public Works/Water & Sewer/Stormwater, Fire, franchised 
utility representatives and other interested parties, Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not 
limited to) associated with the request to vacate the described water line and sanitary sewer easements dedicated by 
separate instrument. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the 
propriety of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of 

notice of this vacation proceeding one time July 30, 2015, which was at least 20 days prior to this 
public hearing. 
 

2. That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the described water line and 
sanitary sewer easements dedicated by separate instruments and that the public will suffer no loss or 
inconvenience thereby. 

 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 
 
Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 

(1) Abandonment or relocation/reconstruction of any/all utilities, made necessary by this vacation shall be to 
City Standards and shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicant.  As needed provide an 
approved private project plan number for the abandonment /relocation of public utilities.  As needed 
provide approval from franchised utilities for the relocation of franchised utilities.  All to be provided to the 
Planning Department prior to this case going to City Council for final action.   

 
(2) Provide Planning with any needed easements, with original signatures, for relocated utilities, prior to this 

case going to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at the register 
of Deeds.  
 

(3) Provide Planning with a legal description of the vacated portion of the public utility easement dedicated by 
separate instrument on a Word document via E-mail that can be used on the Vacation Order.  This must be 
provided to the Planning Department prior to this case going to City Council for final action.  
 

(4) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the 
MAPC or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete 

80



VAC2015-00032 – Request to vacate easements dedicated by separate instruments    
August 20, 2015  
Page 3 
 
 

 
 

until the Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final 
action on the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, 
County and/or franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of 
Deeds.  

 
 
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Subdivision Committee recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 
 

(1) Abandonment or relocation/reconstruction of any/all utilities, made necessary by this vacation shall be to 
City Standards and shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicant.  As needed provide an 
approved private project plan number for the abandonment /relocation of public utilities.  As needed 
provide approval from franchised utilities for the relocation of franchised utilities.  All to be provided to the 
Planning Department prior to this case going to City Council for final action.   

 
(2) Provide Planning with any needed easements, with original signatures, for relocated utilities, prior to this 

case going to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at the register 
of Deeds.  
 

(3) Provide Planning with a legal description of the vacated portion of the public utility easement dedicated by 
separate instrument on a Word document via E-mail that can be used on the Vacation Order.  This must be 
provided to the Planning Department prior to this case going to City Council for final action.  
 

(4) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the 
MAPC or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete 
until the Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final 
action on the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, 
County and/or franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of 
Deeds.  

 

81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117


	Agenda
	July 9, 2015
	DRAFT 07-09-15 Planning Commission Minutes

	SUB2015-00003
	Mid Continent Airport 8th ADD -MAPC STAFF RPT -SUB2015 03

	SUB2015-00022
	Estancia -MAPC STAFF RPT -SUB2015 22

	SUB2015-00024
	Steinke 2nd ADD -MAPC STAFF RPT -SUB2015 24

	SUB2015-00025
	Webb Road Townhome ADD -MAPC STAFF RPT -SUB2015 25

	SUB2015-00026
	Estancia Commercial ADD -MAPC STAFF RPT -SUB2015 26

	VAC2015-00028
	VAC2015 28 -MAPC STAFF RPT

	VAC2015-00029
	VAC2015 29 -MAPC STAFF RPT

	VAC2015-00030
	VAC2015 30 -MAPC STAFF RPT

	VAC2015-00031
	VAC2015 31 -MAPC STAFF RPT

	VAC2015-00032
	VAC2015 32 -MAPC STAFF RPT

	CON2015-00024
	CON2015-00024 Staff Report and Site Plan

	ZON2015-00026 (Deferred from 7-23-2015)
	ZON2015-00026 STAFF REPORT AND ATTACHED CORRESPONDENCE

	ZON2015-00031
	ZON2015-00031 STAFF REPORT

	CUP2015-00023
	CUP2015-00023 STAFF REPORT AND SITE PLAN

	DER2015-00001
	DER2015-00001 STAFF REPORT AND ATTACHMENTS


